
 

 

Education Partnership Committee Meeting Minutes 
April 11, 2017 

EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP COMMITTEE 
SCHOOL DISTRICT 10 (Arrow Lakes) 
 

 

MINUTES 
School Board Office Date: Tuesday April 11, 2017 

5:55 pm 
 
PRESENT: 
 

 MEMBERS: L. Brekke, Q. De Courcy, J. Struck, M. Teindl, R. Farrell, R. Bardati, R. Mcleod, 
B. McKay, J. Baron 

 
 STAFF: T. Taylor, L. Newman, M. Grenier 
 
 REGRETS: CUPE  
 
 OTHER: J. Trainor  
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER: 

 
Board Chair L. Brekke called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm 

 
2. ADOPTION OF AGENDA: 
 

Moved by R. Bardati seconded by R. Farrell that the agenda be adopted as amended. 
 
Add under 6. Policy Matters:  
 Recommended for revision Policy 131: Board – Chief Executive Officer Relationship  
 Recommended for abandonment Policy 311: Student Conduct While Riding a School Bus 

 CARRIED 
 

3. PRESENTATIONS: 
Nil 
 

4. REPORTS:  
 

a) ALTA (R. Bardati) 

 Class size and composition review continues 

 2013-2019 Collective Agreement pending final authorization 

 4 Day Letter of Understanding in final stages of review 

 Amended 2017-2018 Calendar was reviewed 

 Robo-games taking place in Castlegar on April 29, 2017 – students from all schools in 
SD10 are participating!  

 2017 West Kootenay Zones are in Cranbrook  



 

 

Education Partnership Committee Meeting Minutes 
April 11, 2017 

 
b) CUPE, Local 2450  

No report 
 

c) DPAC  
No report  

 
d) ALELA (J. Baron) 

 Transition planning for Grade 7 students continues between NES and NSS  

 Class size and composition scenarios are being reviewed 

 Two great Art Starts performances in March – Four performances total for 2016-2017! 

 News from Rotary: An ‘Iron lung’ will be brought into the community and a NASA expert 
is expected to visit the District – great educational opportunities for students 

 
e) STUDENTS  

 Student Council – Themed Fridays continue with pajama day and crazy hair day 

 Student Council is considering options for using the anti-bullying funds that were raised 
in collaboration with KSCU 

 A personal care products fundraiser took place on March 18, 2017 

 Gay Straight Alliance Club presented to the Nakusp Village Council at the April Council 
Meeting to propose a rainbow cross walk by the Nakusp Beach  

 
5. SUPERINTENDENT/SECRETARY-TREASURER UPDATE: (T. Taylor): 

a)  Superintendent Report presented in detail (report attached) 
   
6. POLICY MATTERS:  
 a) Policies recommended for revision: 

 Policy 110-Vision and Mission Statement  

 Policy 120-Governance 

 Policy 330-Child and Youth Protection  

 Policy 331-Anaphylaxis 

 Added: Policy 130-Board – Chief Executive Officer Relationship 
 
 b) Policies recommended for abandonment: 

 Policy 121-Goals and Governance 

 Policy 340-Fees for Students 

 Policy 350-Selection of Learning Resources 

 Policy 351-Controversial Learning Resources  

 Added: Policy 311 – Student Conduct While Riding a School Bus 
 
 A summary rationale supporting these recommendations is attached.   
 
 Any feedback regarding these recommendations should be sent to the Board Chair by email to 

loralee.brekke@sd10.bc.ca by Thursday May 4, 2017.  
 
7. OTHER: 
 Nil  

mailto:loralee.brekke@sd10.bc.ca


 

 

Education Partnership Committee Meeting Minutes 
April 11, 2017 

 
8. Recommendations to Regular Meeting: 
 The Education Partnership Committee Meeting recommends that the Board of Education for School 

District 10 Arrow Lakes approve the amended 2017-2018 school calendar.  
 
9. ADJOURNMENT: 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:43 pm. 



	

Superintendent’s	Report	–	April	11th	,	2017		

1

  

 
      

 
1. Enrollment notes –  
 There are new students in three schools since last month: 4 at NES, 2 at Lucerne, and 1 DL  
       students for an overall increased total of 3 students since March 7th’s report 
 In sum, we are up 17 students overall since September 30th 1701 count of 446 

 

2. Principal and Vice-Principal News  
 With regrets, Joe Baron, Principal at Nakusp Elementary School and Edgewood Elementary School  
     has accepted another position starting August 1st, 2017. We express deep appreciation for Joe’s  
     excellent service to the district in his two years in SD 10.  
 The district is pleased to announce that Michael Hibberson, currently serving as Edgewood School’s  
     teaching Vice-Principal, will take over the NES and EES principalship. Mike is excited about the new  
     position, and has already begun transitioning alongside Joe one day per week when EES is closed.  
 A posting for EES and NES Vice-Principal was released on March 30th, with the aim to have a new 

VP selected by mid-May and starting in the district August 1st 
 A strong plan for supporting EES students is in place to ensure high quality learning at the school as 

Mike transitions to the Principalship – he will continue to be at EES a day every two weeks next year 
in addition to the new VP at Edgewood School three days per week  

 Nick Graves, Lucerne’s Principal for the 2017-18 school year, arrives at Lucerne beginning June 18th 
– he will be able to spend two solid weeks learning from experienced principal, Trish Hawkins, who 
stepped up as Principal at Lucerne for this year. Giant thanks to Trish for saying yes… 

 

3. Rural Engagement – April 3rd  
 Trustees Lora Lee Brekke, Judy Struck, and Rhonda Farrell attended this evening session in 

Revelstoke which was rescheduled from March 10th due to weather conditions 
 Information on the Rural Engagement process and feedback can be found at 

http://engage.gov.bc.ca/ruraleducation/regional-open-houses/  
 

           April 11, 2017  
           Superintendent/Secretary Treasurer Report    
              Presented at the Education Partnership Committee,   
                 and Regular Meeting of the Board of Education 



	

Superintendent’s	Report	–	April	11th	,	2017		

2
4. Student Learning Grant Funding   
 Ministry of Education has now released funding for this Student Learning Grant funding in the amount 

of $22,103 for all six schools in the district 
 Funding of $50 per FTE (full time equivalent student) has been allocated on an FTE basis to schools 

to expend after staff consultation about their students’ learning resource needs 
 Eligible categories of resources/supplies include instructional supplies (e.g. electronic learning 

resources, textbooks, other classroom supplies serving an educational purpose), athletic equipment, 
and learning resources to assist non-enrolling teachers (i.e. career preparation materials) 

 Principals are leading discussions with their staff around school priorities and costing for learning 
resources this spring and have the option of carrying funding over to next year 
 

5. Strong Start Coordinators to attend Early Learning Conference  
 Our three Strong Start Coordinators, will attend an Early Learning provincial conference in May  
 Provincial funding for travel expense support was received in the amount of $1050   

 
6. Youth Trades Capital Equipment Grant – SD 10 will receive $368,000 over three years 
 The district has been successful in receiving a $219,000 grant this year to purchase school 

woodwork, metalwork and automotive shops and foods lab equipment at NSS and Lucerne, ranging 
from table saws and routers, to energy efficient fridges and stoves this year 

 $65,000 of the funding may be spent this summer on a major upgrade to plumbing, electrical and 
cabinetry at Lucerne Foods Room as pipes in this foods lab freeze each winter, electrical circuits 
blow and insulation in the walls is inadequate. Ministry staff identified this as a high priority for the 
funding. (NSS shop and Foods room facilities have already received significant AFG capital funding 
support and maintenance staff investments in infrastructure over the years; NSS Foods cabinetry 
was replaced about 8 years ago…) 

 Alternately, the Board may consider taking funds out of shareable or non-shareable capital. We have 
followed up with the Ministry to determine if this is possible. If so, more funds could go into school 
trades equipment.  

 A total of $368,000 over the next 3 years will be allocated to SD 10 with schools determining the 
highest priorities for capital equipment of the grant application 

 This additional capital infrastructure is considerable, and very welcome indeed as our trades 
equipment is decades old. The new funding will significantly strengthen our youth trades programs! 
 

7. Ministry SEP Capital grant – Great news on big capital funding! 
 The district has received confirmation that we have been successful in our application for SEP – 

School Enhancement Program capital funding 
 We will receive $176,000 to replace the NSS roof, $100,000 for emergency lighting throughout the 

district schools and $220,000 for an NES solar project which will increase future energy savings in 
the district  

 We are very grateful for this SEP capital funding support! 
 

8. Budget Planning Process for 2017-18  
 Our budget consultation process has thus far included consultation at four district schools, with 

meetings for both parents and staff, a meeting with the Principals and vice-principal, and two of the 
three Finance Committee meetings  

 The Director of Finance and Superintendent/Secretary-Treasurer have developed three budget 
scenarios for the Finance Committee’s consideration: a status quo budget, and two budgets with 
reductions informed by the budget consultation process and other information 

 Finance Committee meeting #3 was held April 11th, with the Budget By-law scheduled to be passed 
on May 2, 2017 at a Special Regular Meeting of the Board of Education 

 Given the uncertainty about Ministry funding to implement the SCC decision on restored class size 
and composition language, the final Budget by-law may need to be postponed 
 

9. MoA (Memorandum of Agreement) re Restored Collective Agreement Language  



	

Superintendent’s	Report	–	April	11th	,	2017		

3
 The provincial parties (BCTF and the government) have signed an MoA outlining how districts are to 

implement the Supreme Court Decision to restore class size and composition language from 2002 
Collective Agreements. If class sizes are not restored, the district is required to pay a penalty to 
remedy the teacher workload involving significant additional teacher preparation time.  

 Policy 4010 ratios for class size and non-enrolling teachers are significant for our district.  
 

 The Ministry has provided the 
district with $332,000 in Classroom 
Enhancement Funding (of which 
$115,000 of previous LIF funding is 
included) to fund our restored language. 
 District staff have been working 
very hard since December, during spring 

break and continue to try to find ways to make this MoA and the restored language work for our 
students and teachers 

 We have created multiple staffing and classroom scenarios at each school using the Policy 4010 
language to figure out cost options and best learning situations for students.  

 Kudos to Lorna Newman, Director of Learning, for her leadership in this work, along with our 
Principals and Vice-Principals and Susan Brenna-Smith, Director of Finance.  

 Although the Ministry provided $332,000 in funding, the actual costs in 2017-18 we estimate to be 
between $780,000 and $1.2 million dollars to restore 2002 class size and composition language  

 We are submitting an application to the Ministry for additional funding 
 Discussions with our local Union President, Ric Bardati, have been excellent as we have worked 

through this process. The district has openly shared all of the scenarios and challenges in applying 
the restored language.  

 Despite low class sizes across the district (1:12.15 at NSS; 1:6 at Lucerne Secondary; 1:13.88 at 
Lucerne Elementary; 1:13.77 at NES; 1:10.47 at EES), there are 12 classes this year that are above 
the 2002 class size limits. This is mainly results because in the years since 2002, district enrolment 
has declined by over 50% and as a result, many classes throughout the district are now split or multi-
grade classrooms.  
 

10. Upcoming District Pro-D Day Plans 
 April 24th will see our school staff gather at their schools to work on their three-year School Growth 

Plans; the School Growth plans will be presented to the Board at the June 2017 Education 
Partnership Committee meeting 

 May 19th is our biennial Celebration of Learning, where teams of teachers, EAs and PVPs will share 
their work with one another as we celebrate education and learning in small-is-amazing SD 10 

 Invitations to share their work at the May 19th event will be sent out to our staff, and parents and the 
public are invited to attend 

 The Board of Education will hold a Staff Appreciation lunch and event at the May 19th Pro-D day 
 

11. Helen Timperley to visit SD 10 – May 8th and 9th  
 Dr. Helen Timperley from the University of Aukland will visit our district for two days in mid-May 
 Dr. Timperley is a world-renowned researcher in the field of teacher professional learning 
 On Tuesday, May 9th, she will work with the district Leadership team on their work leading and 

supporting professional learning and attend the Education Partnership meeting, while on 
Wednesday, May 10th, Helen will visit and support the C2EAL Learning team facilitated by Dr. Leyton 
Schnellert  
 

12. Design Thinking Project update  
 Over the past five months, hundreds of students from schools across the district have participated in 

Design Thinking Arts residencies ranging from working with clay to creating with food, from 
stopmotion filmmaking and drawing anime to welding.  

 Straight Split 
Multi-
grade 

Primary 21.5 18.5 15.5 
Intermediate 23.5 20.5 17.5 
Secondary 21.5   14.5 



	

Superintendent’s	Report	–	April	11th	,	2017		

4
 In all, six artists, builders, tradespeople and makers have worked with our students! Many thanks to 

local folk, Kate Tupper, Anita Dumins, Susan Janzen, Tyler Leeson, Amy Surina, and Isaac Carter 
for sharing their talents and inspiring our students.  

 The next set of Design Thinking workshops are scheduled in coming weeks – bow making with Clark 
Dennill, filmmaking with Lisa g Nielson and Isaac Carter, and timber frame building with Dave 
Madden 

 The Design Thinking project is funded by three grants: ArtStarts, Growing Innovation and Shoulder 
Tappers – we gratefully thank our funders for supporting local artists and tradespeople in working 
with our students! 

 Many thanks to Project Coordinator, Sheena Delong, for her leadership  
 

13. Ministry Outreach Team  
 Superintendent Taylor has been appointed to the Ministry Outreach team till the end of June, 

providing support to other school districts in redesigned curriculum, assessment and communication 
and reporting  

 When Suzanne Hoffman was appointed Chief Educator this fall, a gap in Ministry outreach was 
identified; five educators from across the province were appointed to provide support 

 A grant of $10,000 was received by the district to provide for travel expenses and administrative 
costs related to the Outreach team 

 On March 15th and 16th, the Superintendent travelled to SD 83 (Armstrong and Salmon Arm), and 
worked with teams of teachers, principals and vice principals from all the schools across their district 
with a focus on assessment and communicating student learning and reporting, as well as an 
evening session for parents 

 It is clear that all of us across the province are on a journey together and are committed to improving 
student success and student learning; learning from other districts while serving on this team has 
been helpful  
 

 
 
 

 

 

 



 

 

EPC / Regular Meeting of the Board  
April 11, 2017 
 
Notice of Motion  
Rationale for Policy Committee Recommendation’s  
 

 
Policies Recommended for Revision  
 
1) Policy 110 – Vision and Mission Statement 
 This policy has been renamed “Vision and Mission Statement” and has amalgamated two policies 

into one. This policy contains key elements from both policy 110 – Mission Statement and policy 
121 – Vision Statement.   

 
2) Policy 120 – Governance 
 This policy has been renamed “Governance” and has amalgamated two policies as one. Relevant 

content from policy 120- Governance Principles and 121-Goals and Governance were maintained 
in the revised policy.  

 
3) Policy 330 – Child and Youth Protection  
 This policy has been renamed “Child and Youth Protection”. This policy has been updated to 

ensure current, and relevant language. An administrative protocol has been developed to cover 
the operational requirements for the duty to report.   

 
4) Policy 331 – Anaphylaxis  
 This policy is highly operational in nature, and has been revised to be consistent with Board 

policies, and maintain compliance with Ministerial Order 232/07. An administrative protocol has 
been developed.  

 
Policies Recommended for Abandonment  
 
5) Policy 121 – Goals and Governance 
 Everything essential from this policy has been incorporated into the revised policy 120-

Governance.   
  
6) Policy 340 – Student Fees 
 This policy is outdated, is procedural in nature and is not governance. An administrative protocol 

has been developed that is current, and outlines processes around student fees. 
  
 NEW SD10 Protocol: Student Fees and Deposits  
 
7) Policy 350 – Selection of Learning Resources    
 This policy is unnecessary, as prescribed resources are covered under Ministerial Order 333 – 

Educational Program Guide. Further, selection of resources and or challenge of learning resources 
is an operational process. See below regarding district protocol.  

  
8) Policy 351 – Controversial Learning Resource   

http://sd10.bc.ca/wp-content/uploads/2017/01/L-07-Student-Fees-and-Deposits.pdf
http://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/education/administration/legislation-policy/legislation/schoollaw/e/m333_99.pdf


 

 

 This policy is operational and is not board governance. A district protocol has been developed to 
outline the process around challenging a learning resource.  

   
 NEW SD10 Protocol:  Challenge of a Learning Resource   
 
 
 
 

http://sd10.bc.ca/wp-content/uploads/2017/04/L-09-Challenge-of-Learning-Resource.pdf


 
 

Related Legislation and/or Documents:  N/A Page 1 of 1 
Policy No. 110  
 Adopted: 31-March-1987  
Amended: Pending Approval History of Dates Amended: 24-October-2000 

SCHOOL DISTRICT 10 ARROW LAKES 
POLICY MANUAL 
    
110 – Vision and Mission Statement  
 
 
 

 

 
1.0  General 
  

1.1 Vision Statement: Our vision is of a learning community which embodies world 
class learning in a rural environment.  

 
1.2 Mission Statement: Our mission is to provide all our students with an equal 

opportunity to grow into caring, intelligent and productive citizens by: 
 1.2.1 achieving academic excellence to the utmost of their abilities; 
 1.2.2 pursuing diverse pathways based on their passions and interests; 
 1.2.3 embracing and managing change, and 
 1.2.4 learning to live and work in harmony with others and the environment. 
 
 We believe our mission can only be achieved together: through collaboration with 

students, family and community, and a highly professional staff. 

 
 



 
 

Related Legislation and/or Documents:  Bylaw 14 Page 1 of 3 
Policy No. 120  
Adopted: 22-February-2000 History of Dates Amended: 28-April-2009 
Amended: Pending Approval   

SCHOOL DISTRICT 10 ARROW LAKES 
POLICY MANUAL 
    
120 - Governance 
 
 
 

 

 
1.0 General  

  
 1.1 The Board of Education of School District 10 Arrow Lakes consists of five trustees 

with the responsibility of governing the school district.  The Board’s prime 
responsibility is ensuring the provision of educational services to students 
attending District schools. The Board reflects the values of the communities 
served, within the requirements of government legislation. 

 1.2 The Board makes decisions as a corporate body based on a majority vote.  
Individual trustees have no authority to act for the school district or to direct 
staff.   

 1.3  The Board Chair or designate will be recognized as the official spokesperson for 
the Board.   

 
2.0 Role of the Board  
 

2.1 The Board governs the operations of the school district with respect for the 
community’s vision and values for education. The priorities of the Board are:  
2.1.1 student achievement, success, and well-being; 
2.1.2 consultation with educational partners and staff; 
2.1.3 connection with community; 
2.1.4 establishment and review of policies; 
2.1.5 development, implementation, and monitoring of the District Strategic 

Plan; 
2.1.6 creation of partnerships with other agencies and organizations; and 
2.1.7 fulfillment of legislated responsibilities. 
 

2.2 The Board reviews data and information regarding student achievement and 
success, school and district programs, and district operations; and thereby 
ensures strong performance of the school district.  
 

2.3 The Board maintains financial oversight through regular financial reports and 
involvement in the annual district audit process. 

 
2.4 The Board co-develops the annual district budget and engages in budget 

consultation and processes. 
 

3.0 Governance 
 
 3.1 The Board governs the school district through policies and bylaws which: 

3.1.1 articulate the Board’s values, goals, and expected outcomes; 
3.1.2 establish processes by which the Board conducts its business; and 
3.1.3 describe the Board’s relationship with staff. 

 



 
 

Related Legislation and/or Documents:  Bylaw 14 Page 2 of 3 
Policy No. 120  
Adopted: 22-February-2000 History of Dates Amended: 28-April-2009 
Amended: Pending Approval   

  
4.0 Board of Education Code of Conduct 
 

 4.1 The Board and Trustees shall operate in an ethical and businesslike manner.  This 
commitment includes proper use of authority and appropriate decorum when 
acting on behalf of the Board.  

 
 4.2 Trustees are expected to: 

4.2.1 At all times, represent unconflicted fidelity to the district which supersedes 
any conflicting loyalty to individual communities, advocacy or interest 
groups, other councils or boards, or personal interest. 

4.2.2 Never attempt to exercise individual authority over the organization 
except as explicitly set forth in Board policies.  Specifically, trustees will 
recognize that: 

   4.2.2.1  any interactions they have as individuals with staff, lack authority; 
   4.2.2.2 individual interactions with the public, press or other entities lack 

authority; and 
   4.2.2.3  evaluations of the Superintendent/Secretary-Treasurer are made 

only by assessing performance through the contractual process, 
policy, and district protocol. 

  4.2.3 Recognize the high level of responsibility that elected trusteeship 
demands.  Trustees will conduct themselves in a manner that represents 
the Board in a positive light, taking no private action that will compromise 
the Board and its decisions. 

  4.2.4 Make themselves knowledgeable about the roles and responsibilities of 
those who work with and for the Board and will respect the dignity and 
rights of these people. 

  4.2.5 Undergo a criminal record check upon election.  
 
5.0 Role of the Chair 
  
 5.1 The Chair shall protect the integrity of the Board’s policies, represent the Board 

to outside parties, and act as Spokesperson for the Board.  
 
 5.2 Specifically, the Chair: 
  5.2.1 Holds the Board to its own rules and those legitimately imposed upon the 

Board from outside the organization.  These rules include the Board’s 
governance policy, bylaws, and provincial and federal legislative 
requirements. 

  5.2.2 Ensures that meeting agendas and discussions are limited to those issues 
which, according to Board policy, are clearly in the Board’s jurisdiction, not 
the Superintendent/Secretary-Treasurer’s. 

  5.2.3  Keeps deliberation respectful, fair, orderly, thorough, efficient, and to the 
point. 

  5.2.4 Chairs Board meetings with all commonly accepted rules of order and  
facilitates open and frank discussion in a safe environment. 

  5.2.5  Makes decisions on behalf of the Board which fall within and are consistent 
with any reasonable interpretation of Board policies, and will keep the 
Board informed of such decisions.  

  5.2.6 Has no authority to supervise or direct the Superintendent/Secretary-
Treasurer. 



 
 

Related Legislation and/or Documents:  Bylaw 14 Page 3 of 3 
Policy No. 120  
Adopted: 22-February-2000 History of Dates Amended: 28-April-2009 
Amended: Pending Approval   

  5.2.7  May represent the Board to outside parties by stating positions consistent 
with Board policies, resolutions and bylaws, and will keep the Board 
informed of such representations. 

  5.2.8  Supports the Vice-Chair in fulfilling the duties of the Chair as required. 
 
6.0 The Superintendent / Secretary-Treasurer 
 

6.1 The Board directs and evaluates only one employee, the 
Superintendent/Secretary-Treasurer, as its Chief Executive Officer.  All other 
employees are directed and evaluated as determined by the 
Superintendent/Secretary-Treasurer in accordance with Board Policy, Collective 
Agreements and Administrative Protocol. 

 
6.2 The Superintendent/Secretary-Treasurer is responsible to the Board for 

ensuring that the school district achieves the articulated goals and plans. 
 
6.3  The Superintendent/Secretary-Treasurer is authorized to manage the school 

district in accordance with Board policy, or a reasonable interpretation of it. 
 
6.4 The Superintendent/Secretary-Treasurer takes direction only from the Board as 

a whole and not from individual Trustees or the Chair.  The 
Superintendent/Secretary-Treasurer may accede to or refuse requests for 
information and/or assistance from individual Trustees or the Chair unless 
otherwise directed by the Board. 

 
7.0 Communication Plan 
 
 7.1 The Board of Education is committed to a communication plan that provides 

clear, accurate, relevant, timely, and effective communication that meets the 
needs of its educational partners and the larger community. 

 
 7.2 The Board shall: 

  7.2.1 Ensure that all Board communications support and inform the Board’s 
vision, mission and goals. 

  7.2.2 Promote effective, balanced and respectful communications. 
  7.2.3 Promote participation in district planning. 
  7.2.4  Inform about education issues, available services and provincial and 

district goals. 
  7.2.5 Establish effective communication links with:  
   7.2.5.1 staff, students, and parents of the school district; 

   7.2.5.2 the communities it serves; 
   7.2.5.3 prospective staff, students, and families; 
   7.2.5.4 the public within and outside the school district; 
   7.2.5.5 other school boards; 
   7.2.5.6 local and provincial governing bodies and community agencies; 
   7.2.5.7 post-secondary institutions; and 
   7.2.5.8 the BC Ministry of Education. 
   

 



 
 

Related Legislation and/or Documents:  N/A Page 1 of 2 
Policy No. 130  
Adopted: 30-March-2004 History of Dates Amended: 24-February-2009 
Amended: Pending Approval  

SCHOOL DISTRICT 10 ARROW LAKES 
POLICY MANUAL 
    
130 - Board – Chief Executive Officer Relationship  
 
 
 

 

 
1.0  General  
 
 1.1 Delegation to the Chief Executive Officer: All Board authority delegated to 

staff shall be delegated through the Superintendent/Secretary-Treasurer, so 
that all authority and accountability of staff, as far as the Board is concerned, is 
considered to be the authority and accountability of the 
Superintendent/Secretary-Treasurer.  
1.1.1 The Board will direct the Superintendent/Secretary-Treasurer to achieve 

goals established by the Board. 
1.1.2 The Superintendent/Secretary-Treasurer shall use a reasonable 

interpretation of the Board’s goals and policies, and is authorized to lead 
and manage the school district, and the Board will respect their choices.   

1.1.3 Only decisions of the Board acting as a corporate body are binding upon 
the Superintendent/Secretary-Treasurer.  Directions or input of individual 
Board members, representatives, or consultative groups are not binding 
on the Superintendent/Secretary-Treasurer except in rare instances when 
the Board has specifically assigned such authority. 

 1.1.4 In the case of Board members or consultative groups requesting 
information or assistance without Board authorization, the 
Superintendent/Secretary-Treasurer can refuse requests if, in the 
Superintendent/Secretary-Treasurer’s judgment, they request a material 
amount of staff time or funds, or are disruptive.  

    
2.0 Executive Expectations 
 

2.1 The Superintendent/Secretary-Treasurer as Chief Executive Officer shall ensure 
the school district operates legally, ethically, prudently, and in accordance with 
Board policies and bylaws. 

    
3.0  Relationships  
  

3.1 The Superintendent/Secretary-Treasurer shall foster positive, respectful and 
collaborative relationships with students, parents, staff and the public in 
accordance with Board policies. Specifically, the Superintendent/Secretary 
Treasurer shall:  

  3.1.1 Promote a safe, healthy and respectful environment for learning and 
working.  

  3.1.2 Support positive, collaborative and proactive human resources practices.  
  3.1.3 Ensure procedures are in place for handling inquiries and concerns. 
 
 
   



 
 

Related Legislation and/or Documents:  N/A Page 2 of 2 
Policy No. 130  
Adopted: 30-March-2004 History of Dates Amended: 24-February-2009 
Amended: Pending Approval  

4.0 Communications with and Support to the Board 
 
 4.1 The Superintendent/Secretary Treasurer shall: 
  4.1.1 Keep the Board regularly informed and supported in its work.  
  4.1.2 Assist the Board in formulating policies by offering options and 

implications. 
  4.1.3 Provide reports and data in a timely and accurate fashion. 
  4.1.4 Provide opportunities for external points of view to assist the Board in 

making informed choices.  
 4.1.5 Communicate with the Board as a whole. 
 
 

 



 

Related Legislation and/or Documentation:  Child, Family and Community Service Act Page 1 of 1 
Policy No. 330 Reviewed: 13 March 2017 
Adopted: 25-Februrary-1986  
Amended: Pending Approval History of Dates: 11-October-2010 

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.10 (ARROW LAKES) 
POLICY MANUAL  
 
330 – Child and Youth Protection 
 
 

 
1.0       General  
 

1.1     The Board of Education recognizes that the health and welfare of a child or 
youth is an important element which affects the student’s experience and 
achievement at school.  

 
1.2     The Board of Education is committed to providing a safe and caring 

environment which is conducive to learning and the development of positive 
interpersonal interactions among students, staff, parents and the community. 

 
2.0    Duty to Report  
 

2.1     The Child, Family and Community Service Act makes it a legal duty (CFCSA s.14) 
of every person who has reason to believe that a child or youth needs 
protection as defined in the Act (SFCSA s.13) to report the matter to a Child 
Protection Worker.  

 
3.0 Collaborative, Coordinated Child and Youth Protection Planning and Response 
 

3.1 There is a shared responsibility on the part of all adults to be alert to signs of 
abuse or neglect in children and youth and recognize and appropriately address 
disclosures and/or suspected abuse and neglect.  

 
3.2 The Board supports a coordinated and collaborative approach to planning and 

responding to reports of child and youth abuse or neglect with community 
partners including the School District, the RCMP and the Ministry of Children 
and Family Development.  

 
3.3 The Board is committed to ensuring all staff annually review their duty to 

report suspected abuse and neglect. 
 
   
 
 
 

 
 
 



 

Related Legislation and/or Other Documents:  Anaphylaxis Protection Order 232/07 Page 1 of 1 
Policy No. 331  
Adopted: 1-April-2008 History of Dates Amended: 28-April-2009 
Amended: Pending Approval  

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.10 (ARROW LAKES) 
POLICY MANUAL  
 
331 – Anaphylaxis   
 
 

 
1.0       General  
 

1.1 The Board of Education recognizes that it has a duty of care to students who 
are at risk from life-threatening allergic reactions while under school 
supervision.  The Board also recognizes that this responsibility is shared among 
the student, parents, the school system and health care providers.  

 
1.2 The purpose of this policy is to minimize the risk to students with severe 

allergies to potentially life-threatening allergens without depriving the 
severely allergic student of normal peer interactions or placing unreasonable 
restrictions on the activities of other students in the school.  

 
1.3 This policy is designed to ensure that students at risk are identified, strategies 

are in place to minimize the potential for accidental exposure, and staff and key 
volunteers are trained to respond in an emergency situation. 

 
2.0      Guidelines 
 

2.1  Definition of anaphylaxis: Anaphylaxis is a sudden and severe allergic reaction, 
which can be fatal, requiring immediate medical emergency measures to be taken. 

 
2.2  While the Board cannot guarantee an allergen-free environment, the Board will 

take reasonable steps to provide an allergy-safe and allergy-aware environment 
for students with life-threatening allergies. All schools must implement the 
steps outlined in District Protocol on anaphylaxis, which include: 
2.2.1 A process for identifying anaphylactic students. 
2.2.2 A process for keeping a record with information relating to the specific 

allergies for each identified anaphylactic student to form part of the 
student’s Permanent Student Record. 

2.2.3 A process for establishing an emergency procedure plan, to be reviewed 
annually, for each identified anaphylactic student to form part of the 
student’s student record. 

2.2.4 An education plan for anaphylactic students and their parents to 
encourage the use by anaphylactic students of Medic-Alert identification. 

2.2.5 Procedures for storage and administering medications, including 
procedures for obtaining preauthorization from both the student’s 
physician and the student’s parents, for employees to administer 
medication to an anaphylactic student. 
2.2.5.1  For students who have not been identified as anaphylactic, the 

standard emergency procedure is to call emergency; school staff 
should not administer medication to unidentified students.  

2.2.6 A process for principals to monitor and report information about 
anaphylactic incidents to the District in aggregate form. 

  

http://www.bced.gov.bc.ca/legislation/schoollaw/e/m232-07.pdf


S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2

1 2 3 4 5 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 10 11 12 13 14 15 16

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 17 18 19 20 21 22 23

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 24 25 26 27 28 29 30

27 28 29 30 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4

Weekends 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

Statutory Holidays 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 12 13 14 15 16 17 18

School Vacation Periods 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 19 20 21 22 23 24 25

School NI/Pro-D Days 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 26 27 28 29 30

Administration Day 29 30 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6

5 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

September 25 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

9 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 21 22 23 24 25 26 27

October 20 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 28 29 30 31

November 13 31

November 17

22 S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

8 1 2 3 1 2 3

January 2 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

January 22 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 11 12 13 14 15 16 17

February 12 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

February 23 25 26 27 28 25 26 27 28 29 30 31

19

30

March 30 S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

April 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 5

April 3 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

April 23 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 13 14 15 16 17 18 19

May 18 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 20 21 22 23 24 25 26

21 29 30 27 28 29 30 31

28

29

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

Days of Instruction 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

Non-Instructional Days 7 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

Administrative Day 1 29 30 31

Total Days in Session

March

Winter Vacation

Spring Vacation

157

NI / Pro - D Day 

May

June 

Victoria Day

March

Schools Re-Open

JUNE 2018 JULY 2018June Administrative Day 

APRIL 2018

Last Day of Classes

NI / Pro - D Day 

MAY 2018

Good Friday 

Easter Monday 

MARCH 2018FEBRUARY 2018

NI / Pro - D Day 

JANUARY 2018

4 Day Week

January 

December

September Schools Open

NI / Pro D Day 

October Thanksgiving Day

DECEMBER 2017

AUGUST 2017 SEPTEMBER 2017

School District 10
(Arrow Lakes)

2017-2018 School Calendar

OCTOBER 2017 NOVEMBER 2017

165

NI / Pro D Day 

Rememberance Day Stat 

BC Family Day

NI / Pro-D Day 

NI / Pro D Day 

Schools Re-Open



S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2

1 2 3 4 5 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 10 11 12 13 14 15 16

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 17 18 19 20 21 22 23

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 24 25 26 27 28 29 30

27 28 29 30 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4

Weekends 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

Statutory Holidays 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 12 13 14 15 16 17 18

School Vacation Periods 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 19 20 21 22 23 24 25

School NI/Pro-D Days 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 26 27 28 29 30

Administration Day 29 30 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6

5 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

September 25 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

9 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 21 22 23 24 25 26 27

October 20 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 28 29 30 31

November 13 31

November 17

22 S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

5 1 2 3 1 2 3

January 8 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

January 22 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 11 12 13 14 15 16 17

February 12 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

February 23 25 26 27 28 25 26 27 28 29 30 31

19

30

March 30 S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

April 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 5

April 3 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

April 23 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 13 14 15 16 17 18 19

May 18 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 20 21 22 23 24 25 26

21 29 30 27 28 29 30 31

28

29

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

Days of Instruction 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

Non-Instructional Days 7 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

Administrative Day 1 29 30 31

Total Days in Session 187

NI / Pro D Day 

BC Family Day

NI / Pro-D Day 

Rememberance Day Stat 

Schools Re-Open

NI / Pro D Day 

SEPTEMBER 2017

School District 10
(Arrow Lakes)

DECEMBER 2017

2017-2018 School Calendar

OCTOBER 2017 NOVEMBER 2017

NI / Pro D Day 

October Thanksgiving Day

AUGUST 2017

MARCH 2018FEBRUARY 2018

NI / Pro - D Day 

JANUARY 2018

5 Day Week 

January 

December

September Schools Open

APRIL 2018

Last Day of Classes

NI / Pro - D Day 

MAY 2018

Good Friday 

Easter Monday 

JUNE 2018 JULY 2018June Administrative Day 

March

Winter Vacation

Spring Vacation

179

NI / Pro - D Day 

May

June 

Victoria Day

March

Schools Re-Open


	Superintendent Report to April 11 2017 Regular Board Meeting
	2017-04-11-Notice of Motion Abandonment and Revision of Board Policies
	110 - Vision and Mission Statement - Jan 31 -draft - pending approval status - R-apr 10
	120 - Governance - Jan 31  - draft - pending approval status R- Apr10
	130 - Board -CEO Relationships - Jan 31 - draft - pending approval status - R - Apr 10
	330 - Child and Youth Protection - Jan 31 - draft - pending approval status
	331 - Anaphylaxis - Jan 31 - draft - pending approval status
	2017-2018- 4 day week calendar
	2017-2018 - 5 day week calendar

